
BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, 
by LISA MADIGAN, Attorney 
General of the State of Illinois, 

Complainant, 

v. 

STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES, INC., 
an Illinois corporation, 

Respondent. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

PCB 
(Enforcement -Water/ Air) 

· NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that we have today, September 12,2014, filed the initial 

Complaint in this matter with the Office of the Clerk of the Illinois Pollution Control Board, by 

electronic filing. At true and accurate copy of the Complaint is attached herewith and served 

upon you. 
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BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, 
by LISA MADIGAN, Attorney 
General of the State of Illinois, 

Complainant, 

v. 

STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES, INC., · 
an Illinois corporation, 

Respondent. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

COMPLAINT 

PCB 
(Enforcement -Water/ Air) 

Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, by LISA MADIGAN, Attorney 

General ofthe State of Illinois, complains ofRespondent, STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES, 

INC., as follows: 

COUNT I 
AIR POLLUTION 

1. This complaint is brought on behalf of the People of the State of Illinois by LISA 

. MADIGAN, Attorney General of the State of Illinois, on her own motion and at the request of 

the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency ("Illinois EPA") pursuant to the provisions of 

Section 31 of the Environmental Protection Act ("Act"), 415 ILCS 5/31 (20 12). 

2. The Illinois EPA is an agency of the State of Illinois created by the Illinois 

General Assembly in Section 4 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/4 (2012), and charged, inter alia, with the 

duty of enforcing the Act and regulations promulgated by the Illinois Pollution Control Board 

("Board"). 
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3. Respondent, STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES, INC. ("SRA"), is an Illinois 

corporation duly authorized to transact business in the State of Illinois. 

4. SRA owns a parcel of land consisting of approximately 17 acres located at 1170 

North 27TH Road (also known as Dee Bennett Road), Ottawa, La Salle County, Illinois ("Site"). 

The Site is located along the north bank of the Illinois River. Recreational businesses and 

marinas are located east and west of the Site along the river. A mixed field/wetland area lies 

north of the Site between North 2ih Road and the Illinois & Michigan Canal ("I&M Canal"). 

5. At all times relevant to the Complaint, SRA was developing the Site for use as a 

camping and recreational facility. The development project included construction of buildings, 

installation of sewers, construction of campsites and recreational vehicle facilities, and 

construction of gravel roads. As part of its construction activities, SRA excavated and disturbed 

soil and cleared areas of trees and brush at the Site. 

6. On April 9, 2012, SRA began burning landscape waste in open piles at the Site. 

The landscape waste consisted of brush, weeds, grass, stumps and scrap wood from SRA's Site 

clearing operations. The fire ignited dry brush at the Site and threatened to spread to 

neighboring properties. The Utica Illinois Fire Department was called to, and did, extinguish 

the resulting brush fire. 

7. On June 14, 2012, SRA was again burning cleared landscape waste in open piles 

at the Site, when the fire ignited a nearby accumulation of firewood. Units from the Utica 

Illinois Fire Department and Naplate Illinois Fire Departments were called to, and did, 

extinguish the burning firewood pile. 

8. On September 11, 2012, SRA again began burning cleared landscape waste in 
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open piles at the Site. The fire from the burning piles spread out of control and ignited a large 

brush fire in the field/wetland area north ofNorth 2ih Road. The brush fire eventually spread to 

at least 150 acres in the field/wetland area. 

9. On September 11,2012, the Utica Illinois and Naplate Illinois Fire Departments 

again responded to the fire and were joined by other La Salle County mutual aid fire 

departments. 

10. As a result of smoke from the September 11,2012 fire, North 2ih Road was 

closed to vehicle traffic and an adjacent railroad track was closed to train traffic. Due to the 

smoke and road closures, adjacent local businesses were forced to close for the day. 

11. Section 9(a) ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2012), provides, as follows: 

No person shall: 

a. Cause or threaten or allow the discharge or emission of any contaminant 
into the environment in any State so as to cause or tend to cause air 
pollution in Illinois, either alone or in combination with contaminants 
from other sources, or so as to violate regulations or standards adopted by 
the Board under this Act; 

12. Section 201.141 ofthe Board Air Pollution regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

201.141, provides, as follows: 

Prohibition of Air Pollution 

No person shall cause or threaten or allow the discharge or emission of any 
contaminant into the environment in any State so as, either alone or in 
combination with contaminants from other sources, to cause or tend to cause air 
pollution in Illinois, or so as to violate the provisions of this Chapter, or so as to 
prevent the attainment or maintenance of any applicable ambient air quality 
standard. 

13. Section 3.315 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2012), provides, as follows: 

"Person" is any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, limited 
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liability company, corporation, association, joint stock company, trust, estate, 
political subdivision, state agency, or any other legal entity, or their legal 
representative, agent or assigns. 

14. The Respondent, a corporation, is a "person" as that term is defined in Section 

3.315 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2012). 

15. Section 3.165 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2012), provides, as follQws: 

"Contaminant" is any solid, liquid, or gaseous matter, any odor, or any form of 
energy, from whatever source. 

16. The smoke from the landscape waste, wood, grass, and brush fires that occurred 

on April9, 2012, June 14,2012, and September 11,2012 is a "contaminant" as that term is 

defined in Section 3.165 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2012). 

17. Section 3.115 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.115 (2012), provides, as follows: 

"Air pollution" is the presence in the atmosphere of one or more contaminants in 
sufficient quantities and of such characteristics and duration as to be injurious to 
human, plant, or animal life, to health, or to property, or to unreasonably interfere 
with the enjoyment of life or property. 

18. On September 11,2012, smoke from the burning landscape waste and the 150 

acre brush fire threatened human health, resulted in highway and railroad closures, and interfered 

with operation ofbusinesses and the enjoyment of property in the vicinity ofthe Site. The 

smoke from the burning landscape waste and resultant brush fire constitutes "air pollution" as 

that term is defined in Section 3.115 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.115 (20 12). 

19. By causing and allowing the open burning oflandscape waste at the Site on at 

least September 11, 2012, Respondent SRA caused, threatened or allowed air pollution, and 

thereby violated Section 9(a) ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2012), and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.141. 
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WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter an order against Respondent, STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES, 

INC., on Count I: 

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time the Respondent will be 

required to answer the allegations herein; 

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated Section 9(a) of the Act and 35 Ill. Adm. 

Code 201.141; 

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from future violations of Section 9(a) 

ofthe Act and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.141; 

4. Assessing a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) against the 

Respondent for each violation of Section 9(a) ofthe Act and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.141 and an 

additional penalty ofTen Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day the violations continued; 

5. Ordering the Respondent to pay all costs, pursuant to Section 42(f) of the Act, 

including attorney, expert witness and consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this· 

action; and 

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just. 

COUNT II 
OPEN BURNING OF REFUSE AND TRADE WASTE 

1-15. Complainant realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 

11, and paragraphs 13 through 16, of Count I, as paragraphs 1 through 15 of this Count II. 

16. On April 9, 2012, June 14, 2012, and September 11, 2012, Respondent SRA 

burned landscape waste from Site clearing operations in open piles at the Site. Emissions from 
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the burning landscape waste were discharged to the atmosphere without being routed through a 

pollution control device. 

17. Section 9( c) of the Act, 415 ILCS · 5/9( c) (20 12), provides, in pertinent part, as 

follows: 

No person shall: 

* * * 

(c) cause or allow the open burning of refuse .... 

18. Section 3.300 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.300 (2012), provides, as follows: 

"Open burning" is the combustion of any matter in the open or in an open 
dump" 

19. Section 3.385 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.385 (2012), provides, as follows: 

"Refuse" means waste. 

20. Section 3.535 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.535 (2012), provides, in pertinent part, as 

·follows: 

"Waste" means any garbage ... or any other discarded material, including 
any solid, liquid, semi-solid, or contained gaseous material resulting from 
industrial, commercial, mining and agricultural operations, and from 
community activities .... 

21. Pursuant to authority granted under Section 9 ofthe Act, the Board has 

promulgated regulations governing the open burning of materials in the State of Illinois, codified 

at 35 Ill. Adm. Code Part 237 ("Board Open Burning regulations"). 

22. Sectiori 237.102 ofthe Board Open Burning regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

23 7.1 02, provides, in pertinent part, as follows: 

Section 237.102 Prohibitions 
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a) No person shall cause or allow open burning, except as provided in 
this Part. 

23. Section 237.101 ofthe Board Open Burning regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

237.101, provides, in pertinent part, as follows: 

"Landscape Waste": Any vegetable or plant refuse, except garbage and 
agricultural waste. The term includes trees, tree trimmings, branches, stumps, 
brush, weeds, leaves, grass, shrubbery and yard trimmings. 

* * * 
"Open Burning": The combustion of any matter in such a way that the products 
of the combustion are emitted to the open air without originating or passing 
through equipment for which a permit could be issued under Section 9(b) of the 
Act. 

* * * 
"Trade Waste": Any refuse resulting from the prosecution of any trade, business, 
industry, commercial venture, utility or service activity, and any government or 
institutional activity, whether or not for profit. The term includes landscape waste 
but excludes agricultural waste. 

24. The brush, weeds, grass, stumps, and scrap wood derived from SRA's clearing 

operations is 'discarded material' and therefore "waste" as that term is defined. by Section 3.535 

ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.535 (2012). As waste, the material is also "refuse", as that term is 

defined by Section 3.385 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.385 (2012). 

25. The brush, weeds, grass, stumps, and scrap wood derived from SRA' s clearing 

operations is "landscape waste" as that term is defined in Section 23 7.1 01 of the Board Open 

Burning regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 237.101. Because the waste was derived from clearing 

of the Site as part of a commercial development project, the landscape waste is also "trade 

waste" as that term is defined in Section 237.101 ofthe Board Open Burning regulations, 35 Ill. 

Adm. Code 237.101. 

7 

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office :  09/12/2014 - * * * PCB 2015-072 * * * 



26. On at least April 9, 2012, June 14, 2012, and September 11, 2012, SRA engaged 

in the open burning of waste at the Site, and thereby violated Section 9(c) of the Act, 415 ILCS · 

5/9(c) (2012). 

27. On at least April 9, 2012, June 14, 2012, and September 11, 2012, SRA burned 

landscape waste and trade waste, and allowed the emissions to enter the atmosphere without first 

passing through a permitted control device. Respondent SRA thereby violated Section 237.102 

of the Board Open B~rning regulations, 3 5 Ill. Adm. Code 23 7.1 02, and thereby also violated 

Section 9(a) ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2012). 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter an order against Respondent, STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES, 

INC., on Count II: 

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time the Respondent will be 

required to answer the allegations herein; 

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated Sections 9(a) and 9(c) of the Act, and 35 

Ill. Adm. Code 237.102; 

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from further violations of Sections 

9(a) and 9(c) ofthe Act, and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 237.102; 

4. Assessing a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) against the 

Respondent for each violation of Sections 9(a) and 9(c) ofthe Act, and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 

237.102, and an additional penalty ofTen Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day the 

violation continued; 
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5. Ordering the Respondent to pay all costs, pursuant to Section 42(f) of the Act, 

including attorney, expert witness and consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this 

action; and 

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just. 

COUNT III 
CREATING A WATER POLLUTION HAZARD 

1-7. Complainant realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 

5, and paragraphs 13 through 14, of Count I, as paragraphs 1 through 7 of this Count III. 

8. On October 16, 2012, inspectors from Illinois EPA and LaSalle County 

Environmental Services visited the Site to investigate possible violations and verify compliance 

with SRA's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") permit for 

construction activities. 

9. On October 16, 2012, more than one acre of land at the Site had been disturbed by 

the ongoing construction activities. No silt fencing, silt fabric, hay bales, or other barriers had 

been installed by SRA to prevent migration of sediment or debris into the Illinois River during 

rain events. 

1 0. . On October 16, 2012, the inspectors observed piles of debris that SRS had 

dumped and/or accumulated along the Illinois River as part of its construction project. The 

inspectors observed three piles of mixed soil and rock that had been placed within twenty (20) 

feet of the Illinois River. The inspectors also observed a pile of disturbed soil and leaflitter 

which also had been placed within twenty (20) feet of the River. In addition, the inspectors 

observed a pile of cut brush and wood debris that had been placed within seventy-five (75) feet 

of the Illinois River. 
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11. Section 12 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12 (20 12), provides, in pertinent part, as 

follows: 

No person shall: 

(d) Deposit any contaminants upon the l~md in such place and 
manner so as to create a water pollution hazard. 

12. Section 3.165 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2012), provides the following 

definition: 

"Contaminant" is any solid, liquid, or gaseous matter, any odor, or any 
form of energy, from whatever source. 

13. The mixed soils and rock, disturbed soil, and cut brush and wood debris 

resulting from SRA's Site clearing and construction activities are "contaminant[s]" as 

that term is defined by 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2012). 

14. Section 3.550 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.550 (2012), provides the following 

definition: 

"Waters" means all accumulation of water, surface and underground, 
natural, and artificial, public and private, or parts thereof, which are 
wholly or partially within, flow through, or border upon this State. 

15. The Illinois River is a "water" of the State as that term is defined by 415 

ILCS 5/3.550 (2012). 

16. Section 3.545 ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.545 (2012), provides the following 

definition: 

"Water pollution" is such alteration of the physical, thermal, chemical, 
biological or radioactive properties of any waters of the State, or such 
discharge of any contaminant into any waters of the State, as will or is 
likely to create a nuisance or render such waters harmful or detrimental or 
injurious to public health, safety or welfare, or to domestic, commercial, 
industrial, agricultural, recreational, or other legitimate uses, or to 
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livestock, wild animals, birds, fish, or other aquatic life. 

1 7. Migration of soil, rock, sediment, and cut brush and scrap wood into the 

Illinois River would impair water quality and render, or tend to render, the water in the 

Illinois River harmful or injurious to public health, livestock, fish and other aquatic life, 

and create a nuisance. 

18. By depositing materials generated during its construction, including mixed 

soil and rock, disturbed soil, and cut brush and scrap wood, in close proximity to the 

Illinois River, without first installing silt fences, silt fabric, hay bales, or other barriers to 

prevent migration of these contaminants into the river, SRA deposited contaminants on 

the land in such manner as to create a water pollution hazard. Respondent SRA thereby 

violated Section 12(d) ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/12 (d) (2012). 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter an order against Respondent, STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES, 

INC., on Count III: 

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time the Respondent will be 

required to answer the allegations herein; 

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated Section 12( d) of the Act; 

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from any further violations of 

Section 12( d) of the Act; 

4. Assessing a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) against the 

Respondent for each violation of Section 12( d) of the Act, and an additional penalty of Ten 

Thousand Dollars ($1 0,000.00) for each day the violations continued; 
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5. Ordering the Respondent to pay all costs, pursuant to Section 42(f) of the Act, 

including attorney, expert witness and consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this 

action; and 

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just. 

COUNT IV 
NPDES PERMIT VIOLATION: VIOLATION OF PERMIT CONDITIONS 

1-12. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 10, 

and paragraphs 14 through 15 of Count III, as paragraphs 1 through 12 of. Count IV. 

13. On May 16, 2012, SRA filed a Notice oflntent ("NOI") with Illinois EPA's 

Bureau of Water, Permit Section. The NOI sought coverage under Illinois EPA's General Permit 

to Discharge Storm Water from Construction Site Activities ("General Storm Water Permit") for 

its development of the Site. Along with the NOI, SRA submitted a Storm Water Pollution 

Prevention Plan ("SWPPP") to Illinois EPA. 

14. On October 3, 2012, Illinois EPA issued coverage for the Site under the Illinois 

General Storm Water Permit, subject to enumerated conditions, as NPDES Permit No. 

ILR10Q095 ("NPDES Permit"). A true and accurate copy of the NPDES Permit for the Site is 

attached hereto as "Exhibit A". 

15. On October 12-13,2012, LaSalle County recorded a rainfall of 1-2 inches. On 

October 16, 2012, the Illinois EPA inspector requested copies of reports of Site inspections made 

by SRA. However, SRA did not have reports of any inspections of the Site· made in response to 

the October 12-13, 2012 rain event. 

16. On October 16,2012, SRA failed to have a copy ofthe NPDES Permit or its 

SWPPP at the Site. 
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17. Following the October 16, 2012 inspection, the Illinois EPA inspector returned to 

his office and located the SWPPP submitted by SRA for Site activities. The inspector 

determined the SWPPP submitted by SRA on May 16,2012 had failed to provide any site-

specific information describing potential sources of pollution present at the Site, appropriate 

sediment controls, or when and how the controls would be installed and used at the Site. 

18. Section 12(f) ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 12(f) (2012), provides, in pertinent part, as 

follows: 

No person shall: 

* * * 

f. Cause, threaten or allow the discharge of any contaminant into the 
waters of the State, as defined herein, including but not limited to, 
waters to any sewage works, or into any well or from any point 
source within the State, without an NPDES permit for point source 
discharges issued by the Agency under Section 39(b) of this Act, 
or in violation of any term or condition imposed by such 
permit ... or in violation of any regulations adopted by the Board or 
of any order adopted by the Board with respect to the NPDES 
program. 

19. The Site is a "point source" as that term is used in Section 12( f) of the Act, 415 

ILCS 5/12(f) (2012). 

20. Section 309.102 ofthe Board regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.102, provides, in 

pertinent part, as follow: 

Section 309.102 NPDES Permit Required 

a) Except as in compliance with the provisions of the Act, Board regulations, 
and the CWA, and the provisions (;lnd conditions ofthe NPDES permit 
issued to the discharger, the discharge of any contaminant or pollutant by 
any person into the waters of the State from a point source or into a well 
shall be unlawful. 
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21. Section 305.102 ofthe Board regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 305.102, provides, in 

pertinent part, as follows: 

Section 305.102 Reporting Requirements 

b) Every holder of an NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System) permit is required to comply with the monitoring, sampling, 
recording and reporting requirements set forth in the permit and this 
Chapter. 

22. Condition IV. of the NPDES Permit provides, in pertinent part, as follows: 

Part IV. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans 

A storm water pollution prevention plan shall be developed for each construction 
site covered by this perr'nit. Storm water pollution prevention plans shall be 
prepared in accordance with good engineering practices. The plan shall identify 
potential sources of pollution which may reasonably be expected to affect the 
quality of storm water discharges associated with construction site activity from 
the facility .... Facilities must implement the provisions of the storm water pollution 
prevention plan required under this part as a condition of this permit. 

* * * 
B. Signature, Plan Review and Compliance. 

1. The plan shall be signed in accordance with part VI.G (Signatory 
Requirements), and be retained on-site at the facility which 
generates the storm water discharge in accordance with Part VI.E 
(Duty to Provide Information) of this permit. 

2. Prior to commencement of construction, the permittee shall 
provide the plan to the Agency. Said plan shall be available at the 
site. 

* * * 

D. Contents of Plan. The storm water pollution prevention plan shall 
include the following: 

* * * 

14 

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office :  09/12/2014 - * * * PCB 2015-072 * * * 



2. Controls. Each plan shall include a description of appropriate 
controls that will be implemented at the construction site. The 
Illinois Urban manual or other similar documents shall be used for 
developing the appropriate management practices, controls or 
revisions ofthe plan. The plan will clearly describe for each 
major activity ... appropriate controls and the timing during the 
construction process that the controls will be implemented ..... 

* * * 

4. Inspections. Qualified personnel (provided by the permittee) shall 
inspect disturbed areas of the construction site that have not been 
finally stabilized, structural control measures, and locations where 
vehicles enter or exit the site at least once every seven calendar 
days and within 24 hours of the end of a storm that is 0.5 inches or 
greater or equivalent snowfall ..... 

* * * 

c. A report summarizing the scope of the inspection, name(s) 
and qualifications of personnel making the inspection, the 
date(s) of the inspection, major observations relating to the 
implementation of the storm water pollution prevention 
plan ..... shall be made and retained as part of the storm 
water pollution prevention plan for at least three years from 
the date that the permit coverage expires or is terminated. 
All inspection reports shall be retained at the construction 
site. The report shall be signed in accordance with Part 
VI.G (Signatory Requirements) of this permit. 

23. On at least October 16,2012, Respondent SRA failed to retain a copy of its 

SWPPP at the Site. Respondent SRA thereby violated Conditions IV.B.l and IV. B.2 of the 

NPDES Permit. 

24. On at least October 16, 2012, Respondent SRA failed to have copies of reports at 

the Site documenting inspections made following the 1-2 inch rainfall that occurred on October 

12-13, 2012. Respondent SRA thereby violated Condition IV.D.4.c of the NPDES Permit. 
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25. Respondent initiated construction activities at the Site prior to October 16, 2012, 

but failed to develop an SWPPP that included a description of potential sources of pollution from 

its construction activities at the Site, appropriate and Site-specific sediment controls, or how 

storm water management would be implemented at the Site. Respondent SRA thereby violated 

Condition IV.D.2 of the NPDES Permit. 

26. By violating Conditions IV.B.1, IV.B.2, IV.D.4.c, and IV.D.2 ofthe NPDES 

Permit, Respondent SRA thereby violated Section 12(f) ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(f) (2012), and 

Section 309.102 ofthe Board regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.102. 

27. By failing to make and keep records of site inspections following a storm 

resulting in more than 0.5 inches ofrain, Respondent also violated Section 305.102 ofthe Board 

regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 305.102, thereby violating Section 12(f) ofthe Act, 415 ILCS 

5/12(f) (2012). 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully 

requests that the Board enter an order against Respondent, STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES, 

INC., on Count IV: 

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time the Respondent will be 

required to answer the allegations herein; 

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated Section 12(f) of the Act, and 35 Ill. 

Adm. Code Sections 309.102 and 305.102; 

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from any further violations of 

Section 12(f) ofthe Act, and 35 Ill. Adm. Code Sections 309.102 and 305.102; 
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4. Assessing a civil penalty ofTen Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) against the 

Respondent for each day of violation of Section 12(f) of the Act, and 35 Ill. Adm. Code Sections 

309.102 and 305.102; 

5. Ordering the Respondent to pay all costs, pursuant to Section 42(f) of the Act, 

including attorney, expert witness and consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this 

action; and 

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just. 

Of Counsel: 
CHRISTOPHER J. GRANT 
Assistant Attorney General 
Environmental Bureau 
69 W. Washington Street, Suite 1800 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
(312) 814-5388 

BY: 

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 
by LISA MADIGAN, 
Attorney General of the State of Illinois 

MATTHEW J. DUNN, Chief 
Environmental Enforcement/ Asbestos 
Litigation Division 

dL~LJ~ 
WALLACE, Chief 

Environmental Bureau 
Assistant Attorney General 
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I, 

j Page 1 NPDES Permit No. lLR10 

General NPDES Permit No. ILR10 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Division of Water Pollution Control 

1021 North Grand Avenue East 
Post Office Box 19276 

Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 
'!:fWV.i:.@.l!.?..c§t?.J~U.J.l.§ 

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM 

General NPDES Permit 
For 

Storm Water Discharges From Construction Site Activities 

Expiration Date: July 31, 2013 lssue Date: P..ugust 11, 2008 

Effective Date: August 11, 2008 

In compliance with L'le provisions of the lllinois Environmental Protection Act, the Illinois Pollution Control Soard Rules and Regulations (35 1!1. Mm. Code. 
Subtitle c. Chapter I), and th~' Clean W<3ier Act, and the regulations thereunder the following disch<Jrg<>s are authorized by this perrnil in accordance with t11e 
conditions and t>ltachrncnts herein. 

Part L COVERAGE UNDER THIS PERMIT 

II £l JJIJ 
1 11 (eli;)) 
~t/ I. fl;vv 

Alan Kellar, P.E. 
Manager, F'ermil Section 
Dh1sion of Water Pollution Control 

A Permit Area. The p~;mnit covers ill/ <Hens of ihe State of !i'linois with dis-;h<Jrges to <Jny waters of the StalE!. 

8. Eligibility. 

1. This permit shall authorize all discharges of storm water associated with intil!slrial activity irorn construction sites that will result in the disturbance of 
one or more acres total land are"~' constructior) site~ tess than one <Jere of total li.ind that is part of a larger common plan of development or sale if 
the larger comrnon plan willultirnptely disturb ona or more acres total land a,nom. 'l'his purr:nit al~;o authorize:; disch<3rges from construction siles 
designated by the Agency that have the potential for contribution to a viola lion oi' water qu<llity standi.lrds or significant contribution of polltltants to · 
waters of tile State, occurriny afl.;r lhe elffeclive d<lle of !his permit (including dlschCJrgcs occurring afl,;)f the effective date of this permit an; also 
authorized by this perrnil, except ior discharges identified undur Part 1.8.3 (Limitations on Cover;.1ge). 

2. This permit rnay only ;:;uthcrize £l storm water discharge associated with industrial ::~ctivi\y !rom a consb1JC!ion site that is mixed with a storm wate'r 
discharge frorn an in(!ustriai source other than c:onstructio11, where: 

a. tho inrJustrial source other ihan construet!on ls located on the same site as the cansiruction ar.:tivity; 

b. storm waler disclwrges associated with industrial activity frorn the areas of the site wh<:·re constl'IJction activities are occurring an'! in compliance 
with the terms of this permit; and 

c. s\orrn water discharges associated with industrial activity !rom the areas of the site where industrial activity other Uwm construction are occurring 
(includinu storm water discharges from dedicated asphalt plants <lrlc.! dodicat<>cJ concrete piants) me covered by a different NPDES general 
permit or individual permit ati!IK!rizing Stich discharges. 

3. Limitations on C<Narage. The following storm water discharges frorn <:onstruction sites are not authorized by this p(mnit; 

.a. storm water discharges <Jssocialcd with industrial activi~; that originate from the silo afler construction activities have been compleled and the 
sitn has undergone final stabilization; 

EXHIBIT 

I A 
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b. discharges that ara mixed wllh sources of non-storm water other than discharges identified in Part Ill. A (Prohibition on Non-Storm Water 
Discharges) of this permit and in compliance with paragraph IV.0.5 (Non-Storm Water Discharges) of this permit; 

c. storm water discharges associated with industrial activity that aro subject to an existing NPDES individual or general permit or which are issued 
a permit in accordance with Part VJ.N (Requiring an Individual Permit or an Alternative General Permit) ofthis permit. Such discharges may be 
authorized under this permit after ::m existing permit expires provided the existing permit did not establi!lh numeric limitations for such 
discharges: 

d. storm water discharges from construction sites that the Agency has determined lobe or may reasonably be expected to be contribu1lng to a 
violation of a water quality slandard; and 

e. Storm water discharges thtll the Agency, at. its discretion. determines are not appropriall~ly authorized or controUed by this general permit. 

f. Storm water dischmges to any receiving wat<lr spedfied under 35111. Adm. Code 302. 105(d)(6). 

C. Authorization. 

1. In order for storm watm discharr;e:; from cormtror;tion r;iteG to b(~ authorlzoci to dischnrge under this general pem1it a discharger most submit a Notice 
of Intent (NO!) in accordance with the requirements of Parlll b<liow, using an NO I form provided by the Agency. 

2. Whme a nevi' contractor is selec:ted after the submittal of an NOt under Par! II below, a nm'l Notice of!nlun\ (NO!) must be submitted by the owner in 
accordwv~e with Part 11. 

3. For projects that have complied With Slate taw on historic preservation <Jnd endangered species prior to submittal of the NO!, thmu£;tJ coordinntion 
with the Illinois Historic Pr(l!;erv<ltlon Ager1cy and the Illinois Depnrumml of Natural Resources or througt1 fulfillment of t11e terms of intemgr:ncy 
agreements with those agencies. thrl NOI shaH indicate !hat ouch cornpliance has occurred. 

4. Unless notified by the f\gency to :he contrilrf. dischargers who submit an NOI in ac(:ordance with the requiremr:mts of this permit <~re authorlzec! to 
clischarge storm wa!E>.r from constmction sites umier tht: tarms and condilions of this pcmnit. in 30 days r;ft("r the date the NOI h; received by the 
Agerwy. 

5. The Agency m<Jy deny ccveragr, under ihir; permit and require submittal of an appllcr:rUon for an individual NPDES pem1it based on a review of tt1e 
NO! or other information. 

Part II. NOTICE OF lNTENT REQUIREMENTS 

A · Oeadlinl'ls for Notification. 

1. To receive aulhorizlltion under \h:s genert)l permit.;; discharger must submit a cornpleted Notice of Intent (NO I) in acc.ordance wilh Part VI.G 
(Sign~\tory Requirernent.o;) and ti\(' wquirremonts of \his P<Jrt in sufficient time lo allow a 30 day review period nfi€:r the receipt of the NOt by the 
Agoncy and ihe start of construction. Tile completerJ NO! rnay be subrnitiad ek:ctmnic<Jily to the following l:tn<.lll ~l<kliess; 

~p<l .. ~:.ors\i!t1 Q\\wppp@!lin9js,gpv 

2. Discharges that were omviuusly r;overed by a valid General NPDES Permit for Storrn Wator Discharg•)S from Conslruc:!ion Site Activities are 
aulomatically covered by this pennit.. 

3. A di::;chsrgerm<~y submit an ~W! in accordance with the requirornents of this Pnrt alter lt1e ~>tart of con~truction. In such Instances, tile Agency rnny 
bnng an enforcement action for tlny dischtnges of storrn water assr>ciated with industri;;l activity from a construction site that nave occurred on or 
after lh~l start llf conslruction. 

B. Failure to Notify. Oisch;,Jrgem who fa1!to notify the Agmn~y of their In font fl) be covered, and dic;charge storm water l.lssoGiate<l with construction site 
activity to Waters of the Slate without an NPOf.~; permit, are in violation of th~l Environmental Protection Act <Jnd Cle<Jn Water Acl. 

C. Contents of Notice of Intent. The 1\lotice of Intent shall be signed in accord once w!lh Part Vl.G (Sign<Jtory Requirern•mts) of !his permit by all of th<l 
entities identified in paragmph 2 below and sh<JII include the following infonnalion: 

1, The mailing address, Rlld location of the conslrliClion site for which the notification is subrnl!led. Where a rnailinn address for the (>ite is no! available, 
tho loa;tion can b\H1escrihcd In tern1s o·f 1!1e latitude and longitude of theapproxim<lte centerofthe fadllly to the nnamst 1.'5 se(;onds, or the nearest 
quarter section (if U1e SCl·clion. lownship ami ranoe is providtlo) that the constmction site is locHted in; 

2. The owner's name, acldress. telephone nurnber. and status as Federal, State, private, public or other entity: 

:3. The narn~·1, addm:o.!~ and tehlpholl!~ numbr,Jr of thH general contractor(s) thnt have bc7en itJentified at the time of the NO! submittal; 

4. Th~\ name oi tile receiving water(s), or if tll<l dit;charge Is through a municipal separate storm s~;wer, llle name of the municipal operator of U1e storm 
sewer and the uil:rnotc rccc:i•1inr; walcr(s): 

5. The number of any NPOES permit for any disc:hargH (including non"stonn water disclmrges) frorn the site thai is currently auU1orized by an NPDES 
perrnit; 
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6. A doscription of the project, detailing the complete scope of the project. estimated timetable for major activities <md an estimate of the number of 
acres of U1e site on which soil will be di~turbed; and 

7. An electronic copy oi the storm water pollution prevention plan that has been prepared for the site in aecordance with PCJrt IV of this pe1mit. The 
electronic copy shall be submitted to the Agency at tho following email address: .e.Pa •. t::QnstilrWswppp@illiQois.gov 

D. Where to Submit. 

1. Facilities which discharge storm water associated with constn;clion site aclivity must use an NOI form provided by the Agency. NOis must be signed 
in (:lt;cordance with Part VI.G (Signatory Requirements) of this permit. NO!s and the applicable fee for construction site activities are to be submitted 
by certified mail to the Agency at the foliowing address: 

Illinois Environmental Protection i\gency 
Division of Wahlr Pollution Control, Mail Code #15 
Anontion: Permit Section 
1021 NorV1 Grand Avenue East 
Post Office Box 1 ~127G 
Springfield. Illinois 62794-9;:J6 

The completed NOI and SVI.'PPP may be submitted electronically !o the following ern ail address: PPSl.&Qt)§J!'iLIJ1~;glp.Qp.@.lillr!9l§,gf~Y. 

2. A copy of the letter ol notification of ccverage along with the General NPDES Permit for Storm Water Discilarges irnrn Construction Site Activities or 
other indir .. ation that ntorm water discharge;, frorn the site are covered under an NPDES permit $hal! be posted at trw site in a prominent place for 
public viewing (such us alongside o building permit). 

E. Additional Notification. Fadlities which are opewting under approved lor.al sediment and erosion plans. gmding plans. or storm water management 
plans. in addition to filing eopi<!S of the Notice' oflntent in accordance with Pari D above, shall also subrni! signed copies of the No lice of Intent to the local 
agency approving such plans in ac(:ordance with the deadlines in Part A above. See Part IV.0.2.d (Approved State or Local Plans). 

f. Notice of Termination. Where a siio ha:; beon finatiy slabi!iwd and all slcrrn waterdiscilc1rges from construction sites that are authorized by this pennit 
~Jre eiirnin<lted, the perrninee of the facility must sutm1it a complet<jd Notice of Tennination that is signed in accordance 1vi~h Part VI.G (Signatocy 
Requirements) of this p<:rrnii. 

1. The Notic'!' of Terrrlin::J!ion shall include the following information: 

a. The mailing address. and loci.1iion of th<l construction <lite for ·.vtlich U1e nolification is submitted. Where a mailing address for the site is not 
av<Ji!at)le, the location can be dr~scribed in t<~rrns of the lotitude ond longitude of the approximate center oflhe facility to the nearest 15 semmis. 
or the> nearest qumter s.,;ctJon (if the: section. township and ran9e is provided) thai the construc1ion site is lo<'.att:d in: 

h. Tfle owner's ntune. Bdtlrcss, teiepllone number, nnd status ~s Federal, State, private, pubHc or other enti!y; 

c. The nornc. a(Jdress ;J11d teiDphone number of the genersl contractor(s); and 

d. The following certification signed in i:l(;cordanco with Part VI.G (Signatory Requirements) of thls permit: 

"l certify under pem!lty of 1?-w thrJt all storm >.val!lr discharges associa!e<i with ccnstruct!on site activity from the ide1Wfied ktcility that are 
authorized by NPDES genera! permit lL.R 10 have otherwise been eliminaied. l undersl<md that by subrnining this notiee or termination, thall 
am no longer authorized to discll<~rge stom1 water associated with construction ~ite activity by the !Jent~ral perrnit. and thst discharging 
pollutants in storm water associated with construction site activity to Waters of the Stale is unlawful under U1e En•vironrnental Protection Act and 
Cle<m Water Act where thfl discharge is not authorized by a NPDES permit. ! also understand that the submitt<tl of this notice of termination 
does not rr;lease an opemtor from liability for any violations of !his permit or the Glenn Water Acl" 

For the purposes ol this cerlilication. elimination of storm wat&r disct1argesassociated with industJial a~livity means U1at <Jii disturbed soils at!he 
identified facility h<lve been finally stabilized and tempomry erosion and sediment control measures ilaw been mrnoved or will be removed at 
<)n appropri<~te time:, or thGI all storm w<Jt.er dischilrges associated with <".onstruction activities from the idenUt1ed site that are authorized by a 
NPDES general permill1ave otherNise been eliminated. 

2. All NotiC(:S of rermination are to be sent to the Agency to the mailing address in Part 1!..0.1, using ihe form provided by the Agency. 

Part 111. SPECIAL CONDITIONS, MANAGEMENT PRACTICES, AND OTHER 
NON-NUMERIC IJMJTATIONS 

A. Prohibition on Non-Storm Water Discharges. 

1. Except as provided in Port I puragmph 8.2 and pmagraph 2 below, all discharges covered by this permit shall be CClfrtposed tmtirely of storm water. 

2. a. Except <l!'i provided In pmaoraph b below, discharges of materials other than storm waler·must be in compiiancf:l with a NPDES pennit(othr:lr 
than this permit) !;;sued for the disr;harge. 
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b. The follo-.ving non-storm water discharges may be authori;:ed by this pe1mit provided the non-storm wmer component of the discharges is in 
compliance wiih Part IV.0.5 (Non-Storm Water Discharge!>): discharges from fire fighting acUvHies; fire hydront flushings; waters us~->d to wash 
vehicles where. detergenls ore not used; waters used to control dust; potable wa1er sources including uncontaminatod waterline flushings; 
landscape irrigation drainages: routine external building washdown which does not use tietergents; pavementwashwalers where spills or leaks 
oi to'xic or hazardous materials have not occurred (unless all spilled material tlas been removed) and where detergents are not used; 
uncontaminated air conditioning condensate; springs; uncontaminated ground water; and foundation or footing drains where fiows are not 
contaminated with process matllrials such as solvents. 

B. Discharges Into Receiving Waters With an Approved Total Maximum Daily Load {TMOL): 

Discharges to waters for which there is a TMDL allocation for sediment. or a parametr.-:r that addressed sediment (such a~ total suspended solids, turbidity, 
or siltation) am not r;ligible for coverago under this permit unless you dENelop and certify <J SWPPP that is consistent wilh the assumptions and 
requirement:; in the approved TMDL. To bo eligible for coverage under !his geneml permit, oper:;1tors must incorporate into their SWPPP any wnditions 
applicable to their discharges r1ecessary for consistency with the assumptions and requirements of the TMOL within any tirnefmrner; established in the 
TMDL. If a specific numeric waste load nilocation has been established !hat would apply to the project's discharges, the operator must incorporate th<.ll 
allocation into its SVv'PPP and implement necessary steps to meet that allocaUoll. Please refer to the Agency website at: 
hltp:l/www.epa.stp_te.ll.us/wat~;.rttmdllreport-~tatus.htrnt 

c. Discharges covered by this permit, atone or ln combination wi\tl ot11er sources, shall not cau'''l tJr contribute to a violati()n of any applicable water qU<liity 
standard. 

Part IV, STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLANS 

A stonn v.mter pollution prevention plan shall be developed for e<c~ch co11strvction site covered by this permit. Storm water pollution ·prevention plans shall be 
prepared 1n ac::ordance with good engineering practicr~s. The pl£•11 shell id011tHy poten1int sources of pollution which m;;;y ro.~somobly be expedr:d to zifect ihe 
quality of storm Willer discharges associated with construction site activity from the facility. In addition. the plan shall cfesclib<l Md ensure !htl implemen!ation oi 
bfJst rnana9ernent pr.aciices which will bo u~md to reduce the poii\Jtants in storm 1.vater discharges associated wilrl construction site activity and to assme 
compli<mce wilh the terms lollld c-..ondi\ions ortt·1is p<mnit. Facilit:es must implement the provisions of the storm waler pollution prevention plan required t~nder 
this part ns a condition of this permit. 

1\. Deadlines for Plan Preparation and Compllilllce. 

Th<J pian shail: 

1. Be comptetecJ pnor to Um s\art of the conl;truction to be covered under this permit and submitted electronically to the i\gency; and 

2. Provide for compliance wi!t1 the terms and schedule ot the plan beginning wiiil the initiation of cons!rucl.ion activities. 

8. Signature, Plan Roviow and Notiflcntion. 

1 .. The plan .shall rw signet! in accordmnce wilh Part VI.G (Signalory Requirements), <md be remined on-site nt the faciliiy which generates !he storm 
water disclnlrf)e in accordance with Part VI.E (Duty to Provide Information) of this permit. 

2. Prior lo commenc<:rnent of eonslrliction. the permittee shall provide the plan to the Agency. Said plan shall be av;J11able at the site. 

3, Thf: permittee shr;llmakrl plans available upon reqvest from !his Agency or a local a9ency approving S<Jdiment and erosion plans, grading plans, or 
storm water management plans: or in ltw case of a storm water dlschargo associated with ind~Js!rial ar;tivity which dirJcharges through a municipal 
separate storm sewer system with an NPDES permit. to tile municipal oporalor of tlHJ system. 

4. The Agency mr.ty notify the p<:rmittec alnny time that the plan does not meet oneorrnore of the minimum requirememsoftflls P<H1. S~IC'%1 notific--ation 
stmll identify those provisiom; of Uw penni! which are not being met by tho plan, and identi~f which provisions of the plan require mocJificaiions in 
order io rn<3et thH minimum requirHrnel"iiS "f \hi~ part. Within 7 days from reC~Jipt ()[ liO!ific?.tion from the 1\gency, ihe permittee shall mf.l!H; the 
required changes to tho plan and shall submit to !he Agency a Wlitten certifH::<Jtion that t11o requested changes have been macle. Failure lo corn ply 
shall terminate HtHhorl<:ation under this permit 

5. All storm water polluUon prevention plans and t'll cornpleled inspeGlion forms/reports required under u·1is permit <Jre considered reports thai shall be 
available to the public at any reasonable time upon request Howev0r. the pnrrnH\e'' may clc;lrn any portion of a storm water polluUon !)revention plan 
as confidenlial in accordance wilh -10 CFR PM 2. 

C. Keeping Plans Curront. The permittee sh<lll arnend the plan whenever there is il chan9e in design, construction, operation, or maintenance, wl11ch has a 
significnnt effect. on the potential for !he discharge of pollutants to Waters of tho State <lnd wt1ich has not othe1wise been addressE-'<.i in the plan or if the 
storm wnter pollution prev{":ntion pi<Jn proves io b<; ineffective in elirilinatin£J or signifiamlly minirnizing poti(Jianls from ~;ourtt>s identified under pnwgrapil 
D.2 below, or in otherwise achieving the general objectives of controlling pollutants in storm water discharges associawd wiU1 con;;trur;tion site activity, In 
addition, !he pion shnil be nmended to identify any new conlr<Jctor <md/or subcontractor that will implement a measure of tho storm wHter pollution 
prevention plan. l\mendrnents to the pl<m may be reviewed by !he Agency in the same manner as Part IV.B above. Any revisions of the docurnnnts for 
the storm water pollution prevention plan shall be kept on site at all times. 

D. Contents of Plan. The storm water pollution prevention plan shall include the following 1terns: 

1. Site Descrip!fon. Each plan shall, provide a description of the 'following: 

a. A description of the nature of the constnJction activity or demolition work; 
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b. A description of the intended :::equence of major activities which disturb soils for major portions of lh·e site (e.g. clearing. grubbing, excavation, 
grading): 

c. An estimate of the total area of the site and the total area of the site U1at is expected to be disturbed by excavation, grading, or other nctivities; 

cl. An estimate of the runoff coefficient of the site after construction activities are completed and existing data describing the soil or the qua lily of 
any discharge frorn lhtJ site; 

e. A site map indicating drainage patterns and approxim<~tc slopes anticipated before and after major nrading activiiies,locatlons where vehicles 
entur or exit the site and controls to prevent offsite sediment tracking. areas of soil disturbance. the lor,.ation <lfrnajor structural anc! nonstructuml 
controls ideniined in ihe plr:m, tho location of areas where stabilization practices (1re expected to occur, surface waters {including weUands). <md 
locations when'l storm wnt~Jr is disch<Jrgt;d to a surface water; and 

f. The name of the recr~iving water(s) and the ultimate receiving water(s), and areal extent of wetland acreage at the site. 

2. Controls. Each plan shall include a description of appropriate r..ontrols that will be implemented at the construction site. The Illinois Urban Manual 
(h.ttR.=li.\'N{w,ilJ)f<::!?-U:Sda.govllechnicallongineqr/ur,ban[in.<lQ)I,.h!f11)} or otrwrsimil8rdocumenis shall be used for developing the appropriate mnnage· 
ment practices. c.')ntrols or reviGions of the plan. The plan will clearly describe for each major activity identified In paragraph 0.1 above, appmpriale 
controls and the tirninfJ during the construction process that the controls will be implemented. (Fer exampl1:. perimeter controls for one portion of the 
site witl be inst.:•lled after the clearin9 <Jnd wubbing necessarJ for installation of the measure, but before the clearing and grubbing for U1e remaining 
portions of the site. Perimeter controls will be actively maintained until final stabilization of U1ose portions of the site upward of !he perimeter control. 
Tempor<.~ry perimeter controls will be remov<:d after final stabilization). The description of controls shsil address as appropriate the following 
rninimurn components: 

a. Erosion and Sediment Controls. 

(i) Stabili.zation Practices. A description of interim and permanent stabill:zilllon practices. includino site-specific scheduling of the 
implernenlillion of \hr~ practices. Site p!t;ns should ensure tl1c1t existing vef)~~taUon is preserv<~d where pra<;ticable tmd that disturbed 
portions of the site ilre stabilized. Sir>bilization practice1s may include: ternpomrily seeding. permanent seeding, mulching, geotexti!os. 
sod stabilization. vegetative buffer strips, protection of trees. preservation of mat1.1ro vegetation. staged or staggered development, and 
other appropriate measures. ;\ record of the dates when major grading activities occur, when construction activities temporarily or 
perrnanenily cease 011 a portion of the site. and when stabilization measures <lre initiated shall !)e incl,;ded in ihe plan. Except a1; provided 
in paranraphs {/\.)and (8) bl)lo•.v, stabihzat1on n<f:il'SWf!S shall be iniii11ied as soon <lS pmcti~ble in portions of the site where conslnJction 
activi'lk;s have !emporari!y or pemmnently cea;,ecl. but in no case more then 7 days «Iter ll1e construction acllvl!y in ihaiportlon of the site 
hi'!s temporarily or permanently <:(J8sed ns follows: · 

{A) 1Nhere the initi<Jtion or stabilization measures by thu 7th day after C(.mstrucUon activity temporarily or pe1manent1y ceases on a portion 
of the site is prer:!tK1ed tJy snow cover. stabilization measures shall be iniliated as soon as practicable. 

(B) Where constrL•Ction activity will resumE1 on a portion of the sitewithin14 d<lysfrci'n when nctivi1if:s ceased, (e.g. the total time period 
1hat construction <Jctivity is temporarily ceased is less than14 days) thHil stabi!iz<ltion rnnasures do not have to be initialed on that 
portion of site by the 7th cay after construction ilctivily IHrnporarily CH<JSHd. 

(ii) Structur<1l Practices. AdeS~.:ription of structural practices utilized (Q divertflows from exposed soils, store flows orolher.vise lirnil runoff 
and the discharge of pollutnnts from e:<posed .areas of the site. Such practices may include silt fences. eflrth dikes. drainage swaies, 
sediment traps. r;hecK dams, subsurface drains. pipe slope drains. lovcl spreaders, s·torrn drrJin 1n1et protection. rock outlet protection, 
reinforcerJ soil retaining systems, gabions. and temporary or permanent sediment basins. Structural practices should be placed on upland 
.soiis to the degree practicable. The installation of these devices may be subjet:f to Section 404 of the C'I"'A. 

(iii) Best Management Practices for Impaired Waters. For any sile which disr;harges directly ll:J an impaired water identified on the Agency's 
website for :?03(d) listmg for suspended solids, turbidity. or siltation the storm ·.vater polluUon prevention plan shall be designed for a storm 
event equal to or greater tb;;m a 25-year 24-hour rolnfali event. If required by federal regulations or the Illinois Environmental Protection 
Agem:y's Illinois Urban Manual. the storm water pollution prevention plan shall adhere to a rnore restrictive design criteria. Please refer to 
the Agency's website at: {hi!p/I~\"<'N.<,ep,utate.il.u!ilWi.l\ecf.\rpdi/3Q;,?~I·Ii*i!J1tmt) 

b. Storm Water Management. A description of measumtllhnt wi!J be installed during the construction process to control pollutants In storm water 
disch<lrg~JS that will occur afier construction orn~ralions have been cornplt~tr~d. Structural measures should be placed 011 upland soils to the 
dogree attainable. Tho installation oi ttlese devices rnay be subject to Section '104 of ltle CW/\. This permit only addresses the inst<lllation of 
storm water management measures. and not the ultimate operation and maintenance of such structures after the construction activities have 
been cornplf~ted and the site has undergone final stabilization. Permittees are responsible for only the installation and maintenance of storm 
water management measures prior to final stabilization of ttle site. and 11re not responsible for mainl<m<:Jnce z-;flw storrn water discharges 
associated with industn11l <~ctivity have rJeen eliminated from the site. 

(i) Such practices rn"y include: storm 'Nater detention stnJctures (including wet ponds); storm water retention structures; llow attenuation by 
use of open vege!nted swnlos and nntural depmssions; infiltration of runoff onsite; and sequential systems {which combine several 
practices}. The fotorm water pol! \loon prevention plan shall include an explanation of the technical basis used lo select the practices to 
control pollution where nows exceed predevc:llopmHnt levels. 

(11) Velocity dis.sipation devices shc!ll be placed at discharge loc;Jtlons and along the length of any outfall channel <Js necessary to provide a 
non-erosive velocity flow from the structure to a water course so that the natural physical and biological characteristics and functions are 

------------ -
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m<Jintained and protected (e.g. maintenance of hydrologic conditions, such as the hydroperiod and hydrodynamics present prior to the 
lnitiiltion of construction activities). 

(iii) Unless otherNise specified in the l!linois Environmental Protection Agency's Illinois Urban Manual, the slorrn water pollution prevention 
plan shall be designed for a storm event equal to or greater than a 25-year 24-hour rainfall event. 

c. Other Controls. 

(i) Waste DisposaL No solid materials, including building materials, shall be discharged to Waters of the Stale, except as a\fthorized by a 
Section 404 permit. 

(ii) The plan sh~111 em:ure nnd de111onstrate e<.lmpliance with applicable State nod/or local waste disposal, sanitmy sewer or sop lie system 
rE:(J!Jialions. 

(iii) For construction sit.os thFJt receive concrete or asph<~lt from off site locations, the plan must identify and include appropriate controls and 
measures to reduce or eliminate these discharges. 

d. ApprovGd 8t;,te or Local Plans. 

(i) The rnanag~)ment prac!ir.es, controls and other provisions contained In the storm •,vater pollution prevenuon plan must be at leas! fJS 
protr~ctive as the requirements contained In Illinois Environmental Protection Agency's Illinois Urban Manual, 2002. Facilities which 
dlsch<:Jrge storm water Hssociaied with construction site activities must include in their slorm MHer pollution prevention plan procedures 
and requirements specified in <;pplicable sediment and erosion site plans or storm water m<1nagernent plans approved by local officials. 
Requirements specified in sediment llfld erosion site plans or site permits or storm water manaoement site plans or site permits approved 
by local off1cials that are applic;Jbl<~ to protecting sudiJce water resources are. upon submittal of an NO! to be authorized to discharge 
under this permit. incorporated by refertmce and are onforcnilblo undor this permit. Thol plans stwll inci\Jde all requimments of this petmit 
Hnd include ·mow stringent standards required by any local approval. This provision does not apply to provisions of master plans, 
comprehensive plans, non-enforce<1bl" guidelim:s or technicnl guidance documents that <tre not identified in a specific plan or permit thai 
is issued for the corlstruction site. 

(ii) Dischargers S<>eking ;Jftornaliv,;; permit requirements are not authorizr;d by this permit and shai! submit iln indivi<fu,11 p<.mnit<lpplic,o;tion in 
<3ccordance wi<h 40 CFR 122.26 at the a<idress indicated in Pan 11.0 {Wh(:re to Submit) oi U1is permit. alon9 with a description of why 
requirements in approv;;d iocal pl;ms or permits shouic! not b11 applic<?ble as a eondition of an NPDES pC:lrrnil. 

.1. Maintenance. Thf: plan shall indm!e a description of procedures to rnaillti.lin in good and effective operEiting conditions vegetation, ero~.ion and 
sediment control measures ·'lild olher protective measures identi!ied in the site plan. 

4. Inspections. Oualified personnel (pwvirJed by the permittee) shall insp€:r.l <listtnbed areas cf U1e constwcllon sitH that ilave not been finally 
stabilized, structural control rnessurr~s. and locations where vehicl<:s enter or c:xH lhe sHe :Jt least or1c,, every seven calendar d<1ys and within. 24 
hours of lhe .:md of a storm ttwt 1S 0.5 inch0s or greater or equivmlon! snowfall. Oualificd pt!rsonnel me;1ns a rmrson knowledgeable in the principle;l 
and practicm1 of erosion and sedirnen! controls measures, such as a licensed Professional Engineer (P.E.). a Certified Professional in Erosion and 
Sediment Control (CPESC). a CMified Erosion Sediment and Storm Water Inspector {CESS\VI) or other knowledgeable pmson wl1o possessf:s tho 
skills to assass conditions r:ll tho conl>truction site that could impact storm water quality and io ilSsess U1e effectiveness of any sediment and erosion 
control maao-,ures sei<lcled io t.:onirol th<: qtwlity ofstorm water discl1arges from the cons!ruclion activities. 

a. Disturbed areas and £H'f.li)S liSod for storage of materials ih<Jt am exposed to prcdpil!llion ~;hall tm int;p\:te:ied ior E:vitience of. or the potential for. 
pollutanl.s enterinf) the drainage system. Eros~on £1nd sediment conu·ol measums identified in tl1eplan »hall beo!Jse1ved to ensure that they am 
opmating corrnctly. 'iVhere di!;charge locations or points are accessible. they shall be inspected to <Jscertain whether erosion control measures 
are effective in pr<:?V<mling slgnificilnt impacts to receiving waters. Locations where vehicles enter or exit the site shall be inspectecl for evidence 
of offsite sediment tmcking, 

b, Based on the results rA the inspection, !he description of potential pollutant sources identifim:i In tho plan in accordance with Pari IV.D. l (.Site 
Description) of this permit and pollution prevention measures identined in tho plan in accordr>nce with Pent tV.D.2 (Con!rols)Dftl1is permit shall 
be revised 8S <Jpproprlate as soon as practicable aftm such inspection. Suc:h modifications shall provide for timely implementation of any 
changes to !he plan within 7 calend,lr days following the inspection. 

c. 1\ report sumnwrizing the scope of the inspection, name(s) and qualifications of pers<mnel rna king the inspection. tho d;Jtc{s) of tile Inspection, 
major obsorvat1ons rr.lating to tl1e implementation of the storm water pollution prevention pl8n, and actions Ia ken in accordancewitl1 pamgraph 
b above shall be rnade and rotained <JS part of the stonn water pollution prevention plan for at least three years from tile daie that the pmmit 
coverage <~:>:Pires or is terminated. A.ll inspection r-eports shall be retained at !he C(instruction site. The report shall be sign r~d in accordance 
wilh Part VI.G (Signntory Ref]uirernent!>) of !his permit. 

d. The permitlee shall rii)Iify !he appropriate rigcncy Field Operations Section oiflce by email at: flmL\!",VQf!l]9?flm@i.Ui.r.l.Qif!·ll<l.Y_. telephone or fax 
wl\t1in 24 hours of any incidence of noncompliance for any violation of the storrn water poilu lion prevention plan observed during <my inspeclion 
conduclt)ti, or lor v1olations of <Jny condition of thi.s permit. The permittee shall complete <lfld submit '.vithin 5 clays an "Incidence of 
Noncompli;;1nce" (ION) reporllor any violilUon of !he storm wnier polluHon preventitin plan observed during any inspection conducted, or for 
violations of any condition of this permit. Submission shnll be on forms provided by the Agency and include specific information on the cause of 
nonwmpliance, ac;tions which were taken to prevent any further causes or noncompliance, and a staternent detailing any environmental 
impact whicJ1 may hr.1ve rrJsvlted frorn the nonco1l1pli;mce. 

e. All reports of noncompliance shall be signed by a responsible authority as defined in Part VI.G (Signiltor; Requirements). 
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After the initial contact has been made with the appropriate Agency Field Operations Seciion Office, all reports of nonGompliance shall be 
mailed to the Agency at the following address: 

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 
Division of Water Pollution Control 
Compliance Assumr1ce Section 
102'1 North Grand Avenue East 
Post OlTice Box 19276 
Springfield. Illinois 6279·1·9276 

5. Non-Storm Wator Dischnrges. Except for flows from fire fighting activities, sources of non-storm water listed in Part lfi.A.2 of this permit that are 
combined with storm water discharges associated wllh industrial actlvil'J must be identified in tl1e plan. The pian shall identifY and insure the 
irnplement<Hion of appropriate pollution prew:nfion measures for the nM-storm water corflponent(s) of the discharge. 

E. Additional requirements for storm water discharges from industrial activities other than construction, including dedicated asphalt plants, and 
dedicated concrete plants. This permit m.:1y only authorize any storm -,vater discharge assoeiate<l with industrial activity from a (',onslruetion site that is 
mi:<ed with a storm water &;charge from ,1n industrial source other than construction, where: 

1. rne industrial source other than construction is located on the same site as the construction tlCtivity; 

2. Storm water disclmr9os associated with industrial acllvity from the areas of tile site where construction activities are occurring are in compliance with 
the tamrs of this p<lrmit; and 

( 
J. Storm water discharg()s associfllfld with indusirial activity frorn the awas of the site where industrial activity other lhilrl construction are occurring 

(including storrn W<lter disehargns from dedicated asph.~lt pt<mts (other than asplwit emulsion facliities) and dedicated concrete plants) are in 
compliance with the terms, including applicable HOI or appliwlion mquirc:mcnls. of a diffcrent~IPDES 9eneral permit or indivirlual permit authorizing 
such discharges. 

F. Contractors. 

1. The storm water pollution prevention plan rnust clearly identify for each met1sure identified in the plan, the contr<h~tor(s}or subcontractor(s) thatv1iH 
implement the measure. All contractors and subcontractors identified in the plan must sign a copy of !he certification statement in pamgraph 2 below 
in accordance 'Nilh P;Jri. Vi. G (SignatorJ Requirements) (lf this p<lrrnit. All cc~rtific-.:;tions must be inc!\Jded Jr1 the storm 'Nater pollution pmvontion pian 
except for owners th<l( are acting n~ contractors. 

2. Certification Statement. All contractors and subcontractors ilientified in f.l storm water pollution prevention pl::1n in accordance with paragraph 1 
above shall sign a copy of the following certlfkation statement before conductin9 any professional servrce at tile site identified in !he storm water 
pollution prevention plan: 

"1 certifY under penoily of !aw that i und<~rstand the terms and conditions <Jf lhe general 1\Jationai Pollutant Discharge Elirnlnation System 
(NPDES) pwmit (ILR'lO) !llat authorl:rcs ttl<} storm water discharges n~soclmed with industrial <Jctivi!y from the con~:otruclion site idenlitie<.l as 
part d thi-s certification." 

The certiiicalicn must include tile name and title of the person providing the signature in accordance with Part Vi.G oi this fHmrut: the n<rme. 
tJddress and telephontil number of tlw contracting finn; the address (or other identifying clcscription) of the ~;ite; <"llld the date tho certification is made. 

Pmi V. HETENT!ON OF RECORDS 

A. Tho pormlliee :;hall rein in C•)pics of storm water pol!ution prevention plnns and all reports and notices required by this permit. ancl records of all datil used 
to cJJITJplela the Notice of Intent to be COVI'!red by this permit. for a period of at least three years from the datt~ that the permit coverage ;:xpires or is 
termimJted. This period rnay be extended by request of the Agency at any time. 

8. The permittee !;hail mtain a copy of lh<: storm water pollution prevention plan and any revisions to s.:1id plrm requimd by this perrnitnt the ,.onslruction site 
from tile d<Jte of projeet initiation to tile <late of final stabilit.aUon. 

Part VJ. STANDARD PERMIT CONDI:rtONS 

A. Duty to Comply. The permittee must cornp!y with ail conditions of this permit. 1\ny permii noncompliance com;titutes <l violation of the illinois 
Environmental Protection Act and tiHJ CWA and is grouncls for enforcement action: ior permit termination, revocation and reissuanctJ, or modilic<Jtion; or 
for denial of a pmmit renowal applic8tinn. 

B. Contirnmt!on oft he Expired General Permit. This permit expires five yoars from tho date of issuance. An expicod generol permit continues in force and 
effect until a new general permit or an :ndividual permit is issued. Only those lacilities authoJized to clischarge under the exprring general perrnll are 
covered by the continued permit. 

C. Need to holt or roduco activity not a dofonse. It sh01ll not be a dllfense for iJ pcrmiltee in an onforCI;Jment nction tl'let II would hove been necessary to 
holt or reduce lile perrnltiecl activity In order lo maintain compliance witll the concJilicns of !his permit. 

D. Duty to Mitigate. The permittee shall lake all reasonable steps lo minimize or prevent any rlischar£Je in violation of this permit which has a reasonable 
likelihooc! of adversely afiecting human health or the fmvironment. 

-------~--~------- -~~---·~-------------' 
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E. Duty to Provide Information. The permittee shall furnish within a reasonable time fo the Agency or local agency approving sediment and erosion control 
plans, grading plans, or storm water management plans; or in the case of a storm water discharge associated with Industrial activity which discharges 
through a municipal separate storm sewer system with an NPDES permit. to the municipal operator of the system, any information which is requested to 
determine compliance with this permit. Upon request, the permittee shall also Furnish to the Agency or local agency approving sediment and erosion 
control plans, grading plans, or storm water management plans; or in the case of a storm water discharge associated with Industrial activity which 
discharges through a municipal separate storm sewer system with an NPDES permit. to the municipal operator of the system, copies of all records 
required to be kept by this permit. 

F. Other Information. When the perm! !tee becomes aware that he or she failed to submllany relevant facts or submitted incorrectlnfonmation in the Notice 
of Intent or in any other report to the Agency. he or she shall prompUy submit such facts or Information. 

G. Signatory Requirements. All Notices of Intent. storm water pollution prevention plans, reports, certifications or information either submitted to lheAgenC'.:I 
or the operator of a large or medium municipal separate storm sewer system, or that this permit requires be maintained by the permittee, shall be signed. 

1. All Notices of Intent shall be signed as follows: 

a. For a corporation: by a responsible corporate officer. For the purpose of this section, a responsible corporate officer means: (1) a president, 
secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs similar 
policy or decision·making functions for the corporation; or (2) any person authorized to sign documents that has been assigned or delegated 
said authority In accordance with corporate procedures; 

b. For a partnership or sole proprietorship: by a general pmtner or the proprietor, respectively; or 

c. For a municipality, State, Fed em!. or other public agency: by either a prlnclpal executive officer or ranking elected official. For purposes of this 
section, a principal executive officer of a Federal agency includes (1) the chlefexecutiveofficerof the agency, or (2) a senior executive officer 
having responsibility for Ule overall operations of a principal geographic unit of t11e agency. 

2. All reports required by the permit and other information requested by the Agency shall be signed by a person described above or by a duly 
authorized representative of that person. A person is a duly authorized representative only if: 

a. The authorization is mode In writing by a person described above and submirted to the Agency. 

b. The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having responsibility for the overall operation of the regulated facility or activity, 
such as the position of manager, operator, superintendent, or position of equivalent responsibility or an individual or position having overall 
responsibility for environmental matters for the company. (A duiy authorized representative may thus be either a named individual or any 
individual occupying a named position). 

c. Changes to Atllhorization. If an authorization 1mder Part I.C {Authorization) is no longer accurate beca~1se a different individual or position 
has responsibility for the overall operation of the construction site, a new authorization satisfying the requirements of Part I.C must be submitted 
to the Agency prior to or togeiher with any reports, information, or applicalions to be signed by an authorized representative. 

d. Certification. Any person signing documents under this Part shall make the following certification: 

"I cerufy llnder penalty of taw th~;~tthis document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance witl1 
a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gathered and evaluated the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of 
the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons direcUy responsible for gathering the information, tho information 
submit\ecl is, to the best of my knovtledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are signincant pena!ties for 
submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment ior knowing violations." 

H. Penalties for Falsification of Reports, Section 309(c)(4) of !he Clean Water Act provides ihat any person who knowingly makes any false material 
statement, representaUon, or certification in any record or other document submitted or required to be maintained under this permit, including reports of 
compliance or noncompliance shall, upon conviction, be punished by a fine of not more than $10,000, or by lmprisonment'for not more than 2 years, or by 
both. Section 440)(4) and (5) of the Environmental Protection Act provides that any person who knowingly makes any false statement. representation, or 
certification in an application form, or fonm pertaining to a NPDES permit commits a Class A misdemeanor, and in addition to anyotherpenalties provided 
by law is subject to a fine not to exceed S1 0,000 for each day of violation. 

I. Penalties for Fatslficntion of Monitoring Systems. The CWA provides that any person wllo falsifies, tampers with, or knowingly renders inaccurate any 
monltoring device or meU1od required !o be maintained under this permit shall, upon conviction, be punished by fines and imprisonment described in 
Section 309 of the CWA. The Environmental Protection Act provides !hal any person who knowingly renders inaccurate. any monitoring device or record 
required In connection with any NPDES permit or wi\h any discharge which is subject to the provisions of subsection (f) of Section 12 of the Act commits a 
Class A misdemeanor, and In addition to any other penalties provided by law Is subject to a flne not to exceed $10,000 for each day of violaUon. 

J. Oil and Hazardous Substance Liabflity. Nothing in this permit shall be construed to preclude the institution of any legal action or relieve the permittee 
from any responsibilities. liabilities. or penalties to which the permittee Is or may be subject under section 31'1 of the CWA 

K. Property Rights. The issuance of this permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, nor any exclusive privileges, nor does it authorize any injury 
to private properly nor any invasion of personal rights, nor any infringement of Federal, State or local laws or regulations. 

L. Severabiilty. The provisions of this permit are severable, and if any provision of this permit, or tile application of any provision of this permit to any 
circumstance, Is held invalid, the application of such provision to other circumstances, and the remainder of this permii shall not be affected thereby. 
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M. Transfers. This permit is not transferable to any person except after notice io the Agency. The Agency mt1y require the discharger to apply for and obtain 
an individual NPOf:S permit as stat(~ in Part I.C (Authorization). 

N. Requiring an Individual Permit or an Alternative General Permit. 

1, The Agency may require any person authorized by this permit to apply for and/or obtain either an individual NPDES permit or an alternative NPOES 
general permit. Any interested person may petition the Agency to take action under this paragraph. Where the Agency requires a discharger 
auihoriz:ed to dischfJrge under thi!l permit to apply for an individual NPDES permit, the Agency sh!ll/ notify the discharger in writing that a permit 
application is required. This notification stJali include a brief statement of the reasons ·for this decision, an application form, a statement setting a 
deadline for ihe discharger to file the application, and a statement that on the effectiv<; date of the individual NPDES perrnit or the alt:.ornallve 
genercll perrnit as it npplifls to the individual pem1ittee, coverage under this general perml! shall automatically terminate. Applications shall be 
submitted to the Agr~m;y indicnk;d in Part 11.0 (Whnre to Submit) of this permit The Agency may grant iJdditioml tirne to submit tho applicr:Jtion 
upon request of the applicant. If a discharger fzuls to submit in a timely manner an individual NPDES permit application as required by the 1\gency 
under this paragmptl, then the applic<lbility of !his permit to the individual NPDES permittee is autorn<llically terminated at the end of the dily 
specilled by the Agency for application submittal. Tha Agency mr~y rc~quire an individual NPDES perr11it based on: 

a. information r€,cnived which indicates the receiving water may be of particular biological significance pursuant to .35 Ill, Adm. Code 
302.1Q5(d)(6); 

b. whether the receiving welers are impair~xl waters for suspended solids. turbidity or siltntion as identified by the Agency's 303(d} listing; 

c. size of construction si!c, proximi~ of site to the receiving stream, etc. 

The ;,gency may also requtn; monitorinf.i of <lilY storm water discharge from any ~.itc to r.!ctermine whe:th,;r an individual permit is required. 

2. Any rlischnrger aolhmiz(,d by thir; perrnit may request to be il>:duded from the coverage of this permit by applying for an individu<JI pmrnl!. In such 
cc1ses. tile permittee shat! s•.Jbrnil an inclividual application in accordilflce v;ith th(l requirements of 40 CFR 122.26(ci( 1)(ii), with reasons supporting 
the req,Jesf, to the f\gency at the address indiC'.iltod in Part II.D ('Nhcre to Submit) of lhls permit The request may be granted by issuance of any 
individt)al permit or <m alternHtiv(: genmal perrnft If the re<Jsons died by the permittee am adequ<Jte to support tt;e request 

3. When an individual NPDES permit is issueci to a discharger oltmrwise subject to this permit. or the discharger is authorized to disc!1<1rge under an 
<!ltmnative NPDES general perrmt, the appHcabilily of this permit to the individual NPDES permittee i.s autonw!ically terminated on the effective date 
of the individual pem1itor the date of authorization oi coverage uncier the alternative general peflT•il.wllil::hever the cDse may be. When an individual 
NPDES p<mnit is denied to a discharger' oth<~!Wisc, subject to this permit, or the discharger is denied for cov~:rage under an alternative NPDES 
grmeral permit, !h<i aPPiicabilily of thi~ permillo ti1~l Individual NPDES permittee remains in effect, 1.111less otherwise specified by the A(Jenc~'. 

0. State/Environmental Laws. No condition of this J>ermit srwll release· the permittee from Hny responsibility or requirements under other environmental 
statutes or regulations. 

P. Proper Operation and Maintenancn. The perrnitiee shall ill all times properly opel ate and maintain all facilities <:md systems of treatmo:,nt and control 
(and ITilated 1:1ppurtenances) which Hm installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with ftH:l conditions of this permit nnd with !he 
requireme11ts of storm wnt~lr pollution prevention plans. Proper operation and mainterwnco 1.)lso includes adequate laborator1 controls and appropriate 
quality clssurance procedures. Proper operation and maintenance rectuires th(~ operc.tH(ln of backup or Ell!Xiliary facilities or similar systems, instnl!ed by a 
permittee oniy whim necessar{ to achieVil compliance with tlw conditions of the penni!. 

0. Inspection and Entry. Tho permittee shv!I11How the I EPA, or nn authorized representative upon prescn\alion of credenti<1IS and other documents ws mily 
be required by law, to: 

1. Ent~r upon thr~ permittee's promises where 11 regulated facility or activity is located or conducted. or where records rnust be kept under tt1e conditions 
of this perrnit; 

2. Have accoss to and copy at reasonable timer.. any records that must be kept under the conditions of this perrnit: 

3. Inspect al reasonable times any faciliOes, equiprnent (including monitoring and control equipment). practices, or operations regulated or required 
unrJer this permit: and 

4. Sarnple or monitor 8\ reac;onable Urnes, for the purposes of assuring permit compliance <Jr (>S otherwise <1uthorized by the Clean Water f\ct, any 
sub stan cos or pmarneters at any location. 

R. Permit Actions. This permit may be rnoditied, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause. The iHing of a request by the permittee for a permit 
modilicatlon. revocation and reissuance, or termination. cr a notification of pli3nned changes or n.ntidp<Jt~~d noncompliance does not stay any permit 
condition. 

Part VII. REOPENER CLAUSE 

A. If !hHre is Hvidence indica ling potential or realized irnp<>cts on water quality dull to any storm water discharge associated wiU1 ind"strial activity covered by 
this perrnil, the disct1arger may be required to obtain an individual permit or <>n alternative g(tnt>ral permit in acwrdanc'J with Part I.C (Authorization) of this 
permit or the permit may be modified to include different limitations and/or requirements. 

B. Permit modification or revocation will be conducted according to provisions of 35 Ill. AcJrn. Code, Subtitle C. Chapter I and the provisions of 40 CFR 
122.52, 1'22.6.3, ·122.64 and 124.5 and any other applicable public pnrtlcipiJtlon procedurns. 
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C. The Agency will reopen and modify this permit under the following circumstances: 

1. the U.S. EPA amends its regulations concerning public participation: 

2. a court of competent jurisdiction binding in the State of Illinois or the -r" Circuit Court of Appeals Issues an order necessitaUng a modification of public 
participation for ganeral permits; or 

3. to incorporate federally required modifications to the substantive requirements of this permit. 

Part VIII. DEFINITIONS 

"Ag~og:l( means Ihe Illinois Environmental Protection Agency. 

"§..~§.l.MiJllilg&J.D.!tiJ1l'I.?J;J.!.Q.~?-· ("BMPs") means schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, maintenance procedures, and other management 
practices to prevent or reduce the pollution of waters of the United States. SMPs also include treatment requirements, operating procedures, and 
practices to control construction site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw material storage. 

"G.Q!fl_rn..®~~nlof Q9Jl.fi!fJJct\QD . .9L.QSm.lolltion 8cliviti§" The initial disturbance of soils associated with clearing, grading, or excavating acUvities or other 
construction or demolition activities. 

"Q.Y:!.8" means Clean Water Act (formerly referred to as the Federal Water Pollution Control Act or Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of 
1972) Pub. L. 92-500, as amended Pub. L. 95-217, Pub, L. 95·576, Pub. L. (96-483 and Pub. L. 97-117 .• 33 U.S.C.'\251 et seq.}. 

"Q-~_cl.!£~l~9.J?.QJ.!E.tli{,!_.;g;pJi.aJ!.P.l!mr A portable asphalt plant that is located en or contiguous to a construction site and that provides asphalt only to the 
construction site that the plant Is localed on or adjacent to. The term dedicated portable asphalt plant does not include faciliUes that are subject to the 
asphalt emulsion efOuent limitation guideline at 40 CFR 443. 

"Q~Qigl~_d_ll.9..11i!tli~..£.q!l9.r.Pr.l~.Pl1.l.Q!" A portable concrete plant that is located on or contiguous to a construction site and tllat proVides concrete only to the 
construction site that the plant Is located on or adjacent to. 

"Q~9l.G?J~Q . .§.i!!l9..9.L9ril.Y~.l..9.RIELiltl9!1" f,n operation that produces sand and/or grCJvel for a single construction project. 

"Qi(§£!9J" means the Director of U1e Illinois Environmental Protection r'\gency or an authorized representative. 

"Fin;3l....$l~tl;!i!!~.ll91l" means that all soil disturbing activities at U1e site have been completed. and either of the 1\vo following conditions are met: 

(i) A uniform (e.g., evenly distributed. without large bare areas) perennial vegetative cover with a density oi 70 percent of the native background 
vegelative cover for the area has been established on all unpaved areas and areas not covered by permanent structures, or 

(ii) Equivalent permanent stabilization measures (such as the use of riprap, gabions, or geotextiles) have been employed. 

For individual lots in residential r,onstruction. final stabilization means that either: 

(i) The homebuilder has completed final stabili:wtion as specified above, or 

(il) The homebuilder has established temporarJ stabilization Including perimeter controls for an individual lot prior to occupation of the home by the 
homeowner and informing the homeowner of the need for, and benefits of, final stabllization. 

"~.ru:\l.!1_?.DJLM.§Ql!,J.ffi..fiihl.fli<;:iP.1:1L~?.R.?.If!1~.t!?.l9.f.!!L.:."!..I?..!Y.€2.ll?.Y..?.ll?..m" means all municipal separate storm sewers that are either: 

(i) Located in an incorporated place (city}with a population of 100,000 or more as determined by the latest Decenni<JI Census by the Bureau of Census 
(these cities are listed in Appendices F and G of 40 CFR Part '122); or 

(ii) Located In the counties with unincorporated urbanized populations of 100,000 or more, except municipal separate stonn sewers that are located in 
lhe incorporated plac;es, town.ships or towns within such counties (these counties are listed ln Appendices H and I of 40 CFR Part 122); or 

(iii) Otmed or operated by a municipality other than those described in paragraph (I) or(il) and lhatare designated by the Director as part of the large or 
medium municipal separate storm sewer system. 

"tl.9J" means notice of intent to be covered by this permit (see Part II of this permit.) 

"PoiDL$9!Jfc~· means any discernible, confined, and discrete conveyance, Including but not limited to, any pipe, ditch, dwnnel, tunnel, conduit, well, 
discrete fissure, container. rolling stock, concentrated animal feeding operation, landfill leachate collection system, vessel or other floating craft from which 
pollutants are or may be discharges. This term docs not include return flows from irrigated agriculture or agrlcullursl storrn water runoff. 

"Ru_noff @_~.ffu;ie..n.r means the fraction of total rainfall that will appear at the conveyance as runoff. 

"$.19.ffil .. ~0'.;;t1!iil' means storm water runoff. snow rnelt runoff, and surface runoff and drainage. 
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"S!orm Water Associ.e.Le.fl.1!ilh lnQ!Lii.!riEl.8.«.tiYL!y" means the discharge from any conveyance which Is used for collecting and conveying storm water and 
which is direcUy related lo manufacturing, processing or raw materials storage areas at an Industrial plant. The term does not include discharges from 
facilities or activities excluded from the NPDES program. For the categories of industries Identified in subpan;tgraphs (i) through {x) of this subsection, the 
term includes, butis not limited lo, s!orrn water discharges from industrial plant yards; immediate access roads and rail Jines used or traveled by carriers of 
raw materials, manufactured products. waste material, or by-products used or created by the facility; material handling sites; refuse sites: sites used for the 
application or disposal of process waste waters (as defined at40 CFR 401 ); sites used for the storage and maintenance of material handling equipment; 
sites used for residual treatment, storage, or disposal; shipping and receiving areas; manufacturing buildings; storage areas (including tank fanns) for raw 
materials, and intermediate and finished products; and areas where industrial activity has taken place in U1e past and significant materials remain and are 
exposed to storm water. For the categories of industries identified in subparagraph (xi), the term Includes only storm water discharges from all areas 
listed In the previous sentence (except access roads) where material handling equipment or activities, raw materials, intermediate products, final products, 
waste materials, by-products, or industrial machinery SJ~posed .!9.J!.!Qll!..wlli[. For the purposes of this paragraph, material handling activities include 
the storage, loading and unloading. lransportatlon. or conveyance of any raw material, intermediate product, finished product. by-product or waste 
product The term excludes are<Js located on plant lands separate from the plant's Industrial acUvlUes, such as office buildings and accompanying parking 
lots as long as the drainage from lhe excluded areas is not mixed with storm water drained !Tom the above described areas. lndustrialfadlities (including 
industrial f<~cllities U1at are Federally or municipally owned or opemted that meet the descriplion of the facilities listed in this paragraph (l)· (xi)) include 
those facilities designaled under 40 CFR 122.26(a)(1)(v). The following categories of facilities are considered to be engaging in "industrial activity" for 
purposes of this subsection: 

{i) Facilities sl,Jbject to storm water effluent limitations guidelines, new source performance slandards, ortoxlc pollutant effluent standards under40 CFR 
Subchapter N (except facilities with toxic pollutant effluent standards which are exempted under cate_gory {xi) of this paragraph); 

(ii) Facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classifications 24 (except 2434), 26 (except 265 and 267), 28, 29, 311, 32, 33, 3441, 373; 

(iii) Facilities classified <JS Standard Industrial Classifications 10 lhrough 14 (mineral industry) including active or inactive mining operations {except for 
areas of coal mining opl)raUons rneetlng the definition oi a reclamation area under 40 CFR 434.11(1)) and oil and gas exploration. production. 
processing, or treatment operations. or transmission facilities that discharge storm water contaminated by conlact with or that has come into contact 
with, any overburden, raw material, lnlermediate products, finished products, byproducts or waste products located on the site of such operations; 
Inactive mining operations are mining sites that are not being actively mined, but which have an identifiable owner/operator; 

(iv) Hazardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facilities, including those that are operating under interim status or a permit under Sub!iile C of 
RCRA; 

(v) Landfills, land application sites, and open dumps that have received any industrial wastes (waste that is received from any of the facililies described 
under this subsection) including those that are subject to regulation under SubtitleD of RCRA; 

,-. · ·. (vi) Facilities involved in the recycling of materials, including metal scrapyards. batter; reclaimers, salvage yards, and automobile ]unkyards, including 

i.:'U., ·~·· 
but limited to those classified as Standard Industrial Classification 5015 and 5093; 

(vii) Steam electric power generating facilities. including coal handling sites; 

(viii) Transportation facililies classified as Standard Industrial Classifications 40, 41, 42, 44, and 45 which have vehicle maintenance shops, equipment 
cleaning operations, or airport deicing operations. Only those portions of !he facility thai are either involved in vehicle maintenance (including vehicle 
rehabilitation, mechanical repairs, painting, fueling, and lubrication), equipment cleaning operations. airport deicing operations, or which are 
otherwise identified under subparagraphs (1>-(vii) or (ix}-(xi) of this subsection are associated with industrial activity; 

(ix) Treatment works treating domeslic sewage or eny other sewage sludge or wastewater treatment device or system, used In the storage treatment, 
recycling, and reclamation of municipal or domestic sewage, Including land dedicated to the disposal of sewage sludge that are located within the 
confines of the facility, with a design now of '1.0 mgd or more, or required to have an approved pretreatment program under 40 CFR 403. Not 
included are fam1lands, domestic gardens or lands used for sludge management where sludge Is beneficially reused and which are not physically . 
located in the confines of the facility. or areas that are in compliance with 40 CFR 503; 

(x) Construclion activity Including clearing, grading and excavation activities except: operations that result in the disturbance of less than one acre of 
total land area which are not part of a larger common plan of development or sale unless otherwise designated by U1e Agency pur'Suantlo Part 1.8.1. 

(xi) FaclliUes under Standard Industrial Classifications 20, 21, 22, 23,2434, 25. 265, 267,27, 283, 31 (except311). 34 (excep\3441). 35, 36, 37 {except 
373), 38, 39,4221-25, (and which are not otherwise included within categories (i}-(x}). 

"Waters" mean all accumulations of water. surface and underground, natural, and artificial, public and private, or parts thereof, which are wholly or parUally 
within, now through, or border upon the State of Illinois, except that sewers and treatment works are notlncluded except as specially mentioned; provided. 
that nothing herein contained shall authorize U1e use of natural or otherwise protected waters as sewers or treatment works except !hat in-stream aeration 
under Agency permit is allowable. · 

ILR 1 OTMLPMT _FINAL8-'l1-08.doc 

----- -·-----·-

Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office :  09/12/2014 - * * * PCB 2015-072 * * * 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, CHRISTOPHER GRANT, an attorney, do certify that I caused to be served this 12th 

day of September, 2014, the initial Compla~nt and Notice of Filing in the case People v. Starved 

Rock Adventures, Inc., upon the person listed below by certified mail, by placing same in an 

envelope bearing sufficient postage with the United States Postal Service located at 1 00 W. 

Randolph, Chicago, Illinois. 

Mr. Robert· F. Bishop 
Registered Agent 
Starved Rock Adventures, Inc. 
One Dee Bennett Road 
P.O. Box 2261 
Ottawa Illinois 61350 

CHRISTOPHER GRANT 
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